Fair Work
Commission

14 October 2024

Zachary Smith
Divisional Secretary
Construction, Forestry and Maritime Employees Union-Construction and General Division
Sent via email: actnotices@cfmeu.org
CC: smilgate@daley.com.au and AlisonC@cfmeucdadministrator.com

Dear Zachary Smith

Construction, Forestry and Maritime Employees Union-Construction and General Division
Financial Report for the year ended 31 March 2024 — (FR2024/3)

I acknowledge receipt of the financial report for the year ended 31 March 2024 for the Construction, Forestry
and Maritime Employees Union-Construction and General Division. The documents were lodged with the Fair
Work Commission (the Commission) on 12 July 2024.

The financial report has now been filed. You are not required to take any further action in respect of the report
lodged.

Reporting Requirements

The Commission website provides a number of factsheets in relation to the financial reporting process and
associated timelines. The website also contains the section 253 reporting guidelines and a model set of
financial statements.

The Commission recommends that reporting units use these model financial statements to assist in complying
with the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 (RO Act), the section 253 reporting guidelines and
Australian Accounting Standards. Access to this information is available via this link.

If you have any queries regarding this letter, please call 1300 341 665 or email regorgs@fwc.gov.au.

Yours sincerely

Fair Work Commission

11 Exhibition Street GPO Box 1994 T 1300 341 665 F +61 3 9655 0401 www.fwc.gov.au
Melbourne Victoria 3000 Melbourne Victoria 3001 INT +61 293 081 808 E regorgs@fwc.gov.au ABN 9361 4579 199
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CONSTRUCTION, FORESTRY AND MARITIME EMPLOYEES UNION
CONSTRUCTION & GENERAL DIVISION - NATICNAL OFFICE

COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT OPERATING REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024
Operating Report

The Committee of Management (“the Commiltea”) presents its Operating Report an the Construction,
Forestry and Maritime Employees Unlon Conslruction & Genergl Division ~ National Office ("the Unlon”),
for the year ended 31 March 2024.

Review of principal activities, the resulis of those actlivitles and any significant changes In the
nature of those activities during the yaar

The principal activities of the Uinion, fall into the follewing categories:

« |mplementation of Divisional Executive Declsions.

¢ Maintznance of Linion Rules, Reglstrations and Affiliations.
Organising Executive Meetings and Divisional Conferences as well as National Safety Officer
Maatings.

« Conducting activittes for Parllamentary, Divislonal Branch alections, including assisting with
statutory requirements.

s Co-ordinaling ssminars / education courses for Branch Officers to inform them of curreni
developmants or to seek collective Input In the development of national policles.

s Representing the Division’s interest on various national committess and organisations.

¢ Co-ordinating the Involvemsnt of the Union in relevant international Trade Union bodies and
conferences.

« Responeibilty for servicing national awards and enterprise agreements and malntaining related
Information services. Divisional Office also advises Branches on Industrizl matters.

» Pravision to Branches with econemic and industrial research.

s Provision {o Branches of assistance with adminisiration and financial management.
Provision to Branches of a National Library including information service / library through an
electronic databage.

s Co-ordineting OH&S nationally and maintaining a national policy database and information
service.

+ Providing prime responsibility of inifiating and leading the conduct of legal actien launched in
defance of the Division's constitutional work.

« Providing a National Computer Department to sarvice each Branch and Divislonal Offics.

« Provislon of National Publicity Services in respect of the natlonal newspaper, safety newslefter
and various brachures of Industrial issues, media Issues, ate.

e Provision of Natlonal Training Agenda by representing the Union oh vanious Boards and
Committees.

There ware no significant changes to the nature of those activitlea during the pericd.

Operating Results
The operating surplus for the financial year amountad to $107,955 (31 March 2023: $2,193,278 deficit)

Significant Changes In Financlal Affairs
On 1 December 2023, the Mining and Energy Division of the Conetruction, Forestry, Maritime and Mining
and Energy Union (CFMMEU) formally de-amalgamated from the Unlon,

On 1 Decomber 2023, as & result of the de-amalgamation, the Construction, Forestry, Maritime, Mining
and Energy Unlon (CFMMEU) changed its name to Conatructlon, Forestry and Maritime Employees
Union, which is identified an a revised cerfificate of registration under the Fair Work (Registered
Organlsations) Act 2009. As a result, the Union is now referred to as the Conatruction, Forestry and
Marltime Employees Union (CFMEU).

Thare was no other significant change In the financlal affalrs of the Union during the year.
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CONSTRUCTION, FORESTRY AND MARITIME EMPLOYEES UNION
CONSTRUCTION & GENERAL DIVISION - NATIONAL OFFICE

COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT OPERATING REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

Review of cparations

A raview of the operations and results of the Union I8 parformed In the meetings of the Exaoutive Officars
and also at each meetings of the Divisional Executive. Additionally, such metters are considered et the
regular maeting of the Genaral Officers of the Union.

Environmental lesues
The Union's operations are not regulated by any environmental regulation under a law of tha
Commonwealth or of a state or temitory.

Members Right to Resign
Members have the right to resign from the Union in accordance with Rula 11 of the Union and sectlon 174
of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009.

Officers or members who are superannuation fund trustea{s) (include position detalls) or director
of a company that [s a superannuation fund trustae where being a member or offlcor of &
registerad organisation le a criterion for them holding such position

Those who hold a position of trustee or director of an enfity, scheme or company as dedcribed In
8.254(2)(d) of the Falr Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2008, whers a criterion of such entity is that
the holder of such position must be a member or officlal of & reglstered organisation are as follows:

Dave Noonan ~ Formar Divisional Secretary of the Union
- Director of C Bus Property Pty Lid

- Diractor of United Super Pty Lid which acts as Trustee of G Bus

Frank O'Grady - Former Assistant Divisional Secretaty of the Union
' - Former Director of United Super Piy Ltd which acts as Trustee of C Bus

Rita Mallia « Former Divisional Executive Member of the Linion
~ Director of United Super Pty Ltd which acte as Trustee of C Bus

Jason O'Mara - Farmer Divislonal Exacutive Member of the Union
- Director of United Super Pty Ltd which acts as Trustee of C Bus

Number of Mombars
The number of financial members st the end of the financial period recorded In the reglster of members
was 79,868 (31 March 2023: 71,022).

Number of Employees
The number of full-time equivalent employees of the Union at the end of the financlal year was 12 (2023
g).

Indemnifying Gfficers or Auditor

The Unlon has not, during or since the end of the financiel year, in respect of any person who s or has
been an officer or auditor:

» Indemnified or meda any relevant agreement for Indemnifving against a lieblity, including coste and
expenses in successfully defending legal proceedings; or

» pald or agreed to pay a premium In respect of a contract insuring against liabllity for the: costs or
expenses to defand legal proceadings.
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CONSTRUCTION, FORESTRY AND MARITIME EMPLOYEES UNION
CONSTRUCTION & GENERAL DIVISION — NATIONAL OFFICE
COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT OPERATING REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024
Wages Recovery Activity

The Unlon hes not underlaken any recovery of wapes activity for the financial years ended 31 March
2024 and 31 March 2023.

Members of the Committee of Management

The name of each parson who has been a member of the commitiee of management of the Unlon at any
time during the reporting pericd, and the period for whigh he or she held such a position Is as follows:

Namas Posltion Pariod of appolntment
Zachary Algn Smith Divislonal Secretary 4/23-3113124
Andrew Sutherland Divislonal Asslstant Secretary 1/4/23-31/3/24
Jagon Jennings Divislonal Assistant Sscretary 1/4/23-31/3/24
Jade ingham Divisional President 1/4/23-31/3/24
Rob Kera Divisional Senior Vics President 14125-3113/24
Jahn Setka Divisional Vice President 1/4/23-3113/24
John Setka VIC-TAS Divisional Exacutive Member 1/4/23-31/3/24
Derak Chrigtopher VIC-TAS Divisional Executive Member 1/4/23-31/3/24
Elias Spernovasilis VIC-TAS Divisional Executive Member 1/4/23-3113/24
Darren Greenfield NSW Divisional Executive Member 1/4123-31/3/24
Michagl Greenfield NSW Divislonal Executive Member 1/4/23-31/3/24
Michael Ravbar QLD Divisional Executive Member 1/4/23-31/3124
Kane Lowth QLD Divislonal Executiva Member 1/4/23-31/3/24
Mick Buchan WA, Divislonal Executive Member 1/4/23-2113/24
Zachary Smith ACT Divisional Executive Member 1/4/23-03/4124
Michaal Hiscox ACT Divisional Executive Member 3/4/23-3113124

This report is made in accordance with a resolution of the Committee of Management and is signed for
and on behalf of the Commiitee of Managemernt by:

Name of Dasignated Officer: Zachary Smith

Title of Dasignated Officer: Divislonal Secretary
Slgnature:
Date: 20 June 2024
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CONSTRUCTION, FORESTRY AND MARITIME EMPLOYEES UNION
CONSTRUCTION & GENERAL DIVISION ~ NATIONAL OFFICE

COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

On 20 June 2024, the Committee of Managament of the Gonstruction, Forestry and Maritime Employeas
Unlon, Construction & General Division ~ Natlonal Office (*the Union®) passed the following resolution to
the General Purpose Financial Report (BPFR) of the Union for the year ended 31 March 2024,

The Committes of Management declares thet in fis opinion;
{a) the financial statements and notes aomply with the Australian Accounting Standards;

(b) the financlal statements and notes comply with any other requirements imposed by the Reoporllng
Guidelines or Part 3 of Chapter § of the Falr Work (Registored Organisations} Act 2009 {the RO Act),

{c) the financial statements and notes give a true and falr view of tha finencial performance, finenclal
poeltion and cash flows of the Union for the financlal year to which they relste;

{d) there are reascnakle grounds to belleve that the Union will be able to pay its dabts aa and when thay
bacome due and payable; and

(e) during the financial year to which the GPFR relates and since the end of that year.

i. meetings of the Committes of Management were held in accordance with the rules of the
organlaation and the rules of the Unlon concemed; and

. the finencial affalrs of the Union have been managed In accordance with the rules of the
organisation Including the rules of the Unicn concerned; and

i, thr:i financial records of the Union hava been kept and maintained in accordance with the RO Act;
a .

Iv. where the onganisation consists of two or more reporting units, the financial records of the Unlon
have baan kept, as far as practicable, in & conglstant mannar with each of the other rapoiting
units of the organigation; and

v, where information has been sought in any recquest of a member of the Unlon or the General
Manager duly made under section 272 of the RO Act, that information has been provided to the
member or the General Manager; and

vi. where any order for inspection of the financial records has been made by the Fair Work
Commission under section 273 of the RO Act, thare has been compliance.

Thie declaration ks mads in accordence with a resalution of the Commitias of Management.
Name of Deslgnated Offlcer: Zachary Smith
Tlile of Deslgnated Officer: Divisional Sjcretary jf e

Slgnaturs: - _

|

Date: 20 Jurfe 2024
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CONSTRUCTION, FORESTRY, MARITIME, MINING & ENERGY UNION
CONSTRUCTION & GENERAL DIVISION — NATIONAL OFFICE

REPORT REQUIRED UNDER SUBSECTION 255(2A)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

The Committee of Management presents the expenditure report as required under subsection 255(2A)
on the Union for the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2023.

2022 - EXPENDITURE AS REQUIRED UNDER
5.255(2A) RO ACT

Legalcosts . -
6%

-— _ Remuneration
and other
amployment-
related costs and
expenses -
employees
38%

Operating costs _-
50%
“_ Advertising

6%

2023 - EXPENDITURE AS REQUIRED UNDER
5.255(2A) RO ACT

Legal costs
6% '

Remuneration
and other
. —employment-
related costs and
expenses -
employeas
33%

T Advertising

2%

Operating costs —____ -
A7%

Name of Designated Officer: Zachary Smith
Title of Designated Officer: Divisional Sqcretary

Signature:
Date: 20 June 2024
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CONSTRUCTION, FORESTRY AND MARITIME EMPLOYEES UNION

CONSTRUCTION & GENERAL DIVISION — NATIONAL OFFICE
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

Notes 31 March 31 March
2024 2023
$ $
Revenue from contracts with customers
Membership subscription - -
Capitation fees 3A 5,991,065 5,249,723
Levies 3B 710,220 633,720
Interest 3C 210,679 138,037
Other revenue 3F 1,528,473 718,485
Total revenue 8,440,437 6,740,865
Income for furthering objectives
Grants and/or donations 3E 165,000 -
Total income for furthering objectives 155,000 -
Other Income
Net gains from sale of assets 3D - 48,851
Total other income - 48,851
Total income 8,595,437 6,789,716
Expenses
Employee expenses 44 2,999,191 2,776,620
Capitation fees 4B 1,617,894 1,228,681
Affiliation fees 4 23,438 -
Administration expenses 4C 906,583 47,045
Grants or donations 4D 174,353 1,009,500
Depreciation and amaortisation 4E 174,595 197,782
Finance costs 4F 13,950 15,8856
Legal costs 4G 266,246 490,752
Accounting and audit fees 4H 36,808 32,948
Other expenses 41 2,274,424 3,183,781
Total expenses 8,487,482 8,982,994
Surplus/ (deficit) for the year 107,955 (2,193,278)
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 107,955 (2,193,278)

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the notes.
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CONSTRUCTION, FORESTRY AND MARITIME EMPLOYEES UNION

CONSTRUCTION & GENERAL. DIVISION — NATIONAL OFFICE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 MARCH 2024
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
Notes $ $
ASSETS
Current Agsseta
Caeh and cash equivalents 5A 11,762,808 4,037,681
Trade and other receivables 5B 798,048 826,883
Othar current assets 5C 28,900 184,480
Financial asseta 5D 3,000,000 6,000,000
Total currant assets 15,680,757 11,048,824
Mon-Current Assels
Trade and other receivables 6B - -
Right of use asset 8 229,364 273,052
Proparty, plant and equipmant 5E 216,722 270,837
Total non-curront assets 446,086 543,989
Total assets 16,035,843 11,692,913
LIABILITIES
Current Llabllities
Trade and other payables 6A 831,202 A27,784
Deposits held 6C 4,186,268 -
Employes provisions 6B 1,004,460 1,208,457
Lease liability 9 44,059 41,499
Total current liabllities ©,085,589 1_3??_7,740
Non-Currant Liabllitles
l.eageo llablity 9 234,304 279,263
Employee provisions 6B 11,288 18,480
Total non-currant lHabilities 245,568 297,743
Total Habllitles 8,311,458 1,975,483
Net assets 8725385 8617430
EQUITY
Retained earnings 9726385 8,617,430
Total equity 9725385 0,617,430

The above statemaent should ba read In conjunction with the notes,
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CONSTRUCTION, FORESTRY AND MARITIME EMPLOYEES UNION
CONSTRUCTION & GENERAL DIVISION —~ NATIONAL OFFICE

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

Retalned Total

Earmnings -

General Funds
. $
Balance as at 1 Aprll 2022 11,810,708 11,010,708
Daficit for the year (2,193,278) (2,193,278)
Other comprehensive Income for the year : . -
Closing balance as at 31 March 2023 9,617,430 9,817,430
Surplus for the year 107, 855 107,956
Other comprehensive income for the year - -
Closing balance as at 31 March 2024 5,726,388 9,725,305

The above ataternent should be read in conjunction with the notes.
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CONSTRUCTION, FORESTRY AND MARITIME EMPLOYEES UNION

CONSTRUCTION & GENERAL DIVISION ~ NATIONAL OFFICE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

31 March 3 March
2024 2023
Notes $ $
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Capltation fees recelved 6,721,452 4,574,594
Payments to suppliere and employeas (12,526,923) (8,596,482)
Infarest received 211,768 69,088
Other recaipts 10,563,827 1,487,198
Net cash from/ {used by) operating activities 7A 4968922 (2,565,691)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of plant and aquipment {97,602) {128,797)
Proceeds from sale of FPE 7,341 124,098
Proceads from disposal of financial assets 2,000,000 -
Net cash from/ (used by) Investing actlvities 1,909,738 {6,699)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of lkease liabllity {54,334) {52,750)
Nat cash from/{usad by} financing activities (64,334) {52,750)
Net increase! {decrease) in cash hald 6,826,327 (2,624,040}
Cash & cash equlvalents et the beginning of the
reporting pariog. grne _f'__ga?'sm . 7,861,621
Cagh & cash equivalents at the end of the 5A 11,762,908

reporting peariod

4,037,681

The above statement should be read in conjunction wifh the notes.
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CONSTRUCTION, FORESTRY AND MARITIME EMPLOYEES UNION
CONSTRUCTION & GENERAL DIVISION - NATIONAL OFFICE

INDEX TO THE NOTES OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CONSTRUCTION, FORESTRY AND MARITIME EMPLOYEES UNION
CONSTRUCTION & GENERAL DIVISION - NATIONAL OFFICE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024
NOTE1  SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

11

1.2

1.3

Basls of preparation of the financial statements

The financial statements are general purpose financial statements ahd have besn prepared In
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and |nterpretations issued by the Australian
Accounting Stendards Board (AASB) that apply for the reporting period and the Falr Work
{Registered Organisations) Act 2009. The Construction, Forestry and Maritime Employees Union
Construction & General Division — National Office ('the Unlon') Is a not-for-profit entity. The Unlon
has applied the Tier 1 reporiing requiremenis as per the Australian Accounting Standard AASE
1053 Application of Tiers of Austrafian Accounting Standeards.

The financial statements, except for cash fiow information, have been prepared using the accrual
basis of accounrting. The financlal statementa have been prepared on a historical cost basls
except for debt and equity financial assets (including derivative financial instruments) that have
been measured at fair value either through other comprehensive income or profit or lose, certain
classes of property, plant and equipment and Investment properties, as explained in the
accounting pelicies below. Historical cost Is generally based on the fair values of the consideration
given In exchange for assels. Except where stated, no allowance is made for the effect of
changing prices on the results or the financial position, The financlal statements are presented In
Australian dollars. Material accounting pollcies adepted In the preparation of these financial
statements are presentad below and are consistent with prior reporting petiods unless otherwise
stated.

Comparative amounts

When required by Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to
changes in presentatlon for the current financial year.

Slgnifleant accounting Judgements and estimates

The following accounting assumptions or estimaetes have been identified that have a significant
risk of causing @ material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and llabillties within the

next reporting periad.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Unlon agsesses impaiment at each reporting period by evaluation of conditions and events
specific 1o the Unicn that may be indicative of Impalrment triggers. No impaitment has been
recognised in respect of the current year.

Provisions
As describad in the accounting policies, provisicns are measured af management's best estimate

of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period. These
astimates sre made taking Into account a range of possible outcomes and will vary as further
Information Is obtalned,

Recseivables
The receivables at reporting date have been reviewed to determine whether there is any objective

evidance that any of the receivables are impaired. An impairment provigion is includad for any
recelvable where the antire balance is not gonsidered collectible. The Impairment provision is
based on the best Information at the reparting date.
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CONSTRUCTION, FORESTRY AND MARITIME EMPLOYEES UNION
CONSTRUCTION & GENERAL DIVISION - NATIONAL OFFICE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024
NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.3

14

1.5

Significant accounting Judgements and estimates (continuexl)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are depraciated over the useful lfe of the asset and the

depreciation retes are assessad when the assets are acquired or when there [s & glignificant
change thet affects the remaining uaeful Ife of the asset.

New Australlan Accounting Standards
Adoption of New Australlen Accounting Standard requirements

The Unlon has adopted all standards which becama effective for the first time during the year, and
the adoption of these standards has not caused any material adjustments to the reported financial
position or performancas.

Futyre Australlan Accounting Standards Requirements

Certain new accounting atandarda have been published that are not mandatory for 31 March 2024
reporting perlods and have not been early adopted by the Union. These standards are not
expected to have a material impact on the Union in the cument or future reporting periods and on
foresesable future transactions.

Revenue

The Union antars [nto various arrangements where it received consideration from another party.
These arangement include conelderation In the form of membership subscriptions, capitation
faes, levies, sponaorships, donations and interest.

The timing of recognition of these emounts as sither revenue or income depends on the rights
and obligations in those arrangements.

Revenus from contracts with customers

Whers the Union has a contract with a cusiomer, the Union recognises revenue when or as it
transfers control of goods or service to the customer. The Union accounts for an arrangement as
a contract with a customer if the following criteria are met:

» the arrangement ls enforceable; and

« the amangement contains promises (that are also known as performance obligations) to
transfer goods or services to the customer (or to other parties on behalf of the customer)
that are sufficiently specific so that it can be determined when the parformance obligation

has been satisfied,
Mambarship Subscription

For membarship subscription arrangements that meet the criteria to be contracts with customers,
revenue is recognised when the promised goods or services transfar to the customer an @

mermber of the Union,

If there Is only one dlstingt membership service promised in the arangement, the Union
recognises revenue as the membership service is pravided, which is typlcally based on the
passage of time over the subscription period to reflact the Union's promise to stand ready to
provide aselstance and support to the member as required.
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CONSTRUCTION, FORESTRY AND MARITIME EMPLOYEES UNION
CONSTRUGTION & GENERAL DIVISION — NATIONAL OFFICE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024
NOTE41  SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.6 Revenue (continued)

If there is more than one distinet good or service promised In tha mambership subscription, the
Union allocates the transaction price fo each performance obligation based on the relative
standalone selling price of msach promised good or service. In parforming this allocation,
standalone selling prices are estimated If there is no observable evidence of the price that the
Union charges for that good or service in a standalone sale. When a performance obligation is
satisfied, which is either when the customer obtains control of the good or as the service transfers
to the customer (for example, member services or tralning couree), the Union recognises revenus
at the amourt of the transaction price that was allgcated to that performance sbligation.

For member subscriptions pald annually in advance, the Union has elected to apply the practical
expedient to not adjust the transaction price for the effects of a signiflcant financing component
because the period from when the customer pays and the good or sarvices will transfer to the
customer will be one year or less.

When a member subsequently purchases additional goods or services from the Union at their
standalone sslling price, the Union accounts for those sales as a separate confract with a

customer,

Capltation fess

The Union's arrangement with branches or another reporting units meet the criteria to be a
contract with a customer. Accordingly, the Linion recognises the capitation fees promised under
that arrangement when or as it transfers the services.

In circumstances where the criteria for a conbract with a customer are not met, the Union will
recognise caphation feea us income upon recelpt as specified in the income recognition policy
helow,

Lavias

Levies paid by a branch In an arrangemant that meats the oriteria te be a contract with a customer
is recognised as revenue when or as the Unlon transfers the relevant services to the branch/other

raporting unit.

On occasion, the Linion is responsible for the collection of levies from state-based reporting units
of the Construction and General Division, on behalf of the CFMEU National Office. Whilst the
cash flows are facliated (and reportad) through this Unlon, the substance and nature of thase
transactions are such that the criteria for a contract with a customer are not met - the Union is
merely the conduit of the levy collection and hence no income or expenses is reportad in this
financial report.
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CONSTRUCTION, FORESTRY AND MARITIME EMPLOYEES UNION
CONSTRUCTION & GENERAL DIVISION - NATIONAL OFFICE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024
NOTE1  SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.6

1.8

1.7

Revenue {contintied}
Incomne of the Unlon as a Not-for-Profit Entity

Conskderation is recelved by the Unlon to enable the entiy to further its objectives. The Union
recognises each of these amounts of consideration as income when the consideration is recelved
{which is when the Union obtaing control of the caeh) becauss, basad on the rights and
obligations In each amangement:

» the arrangements do not maet the criteria to ba contracts with custiomers becausae either
the arrangement ie unenforceable or lacks sufficlently specific promisas to transfer gocds
or services to the customer; and

" ThaI tUnlon’s tscognition of the cash contribution does not give rsa to any related
liabilities.

The Union recelves cash consideration from the following amangements whereby that
consideration is recognised as iIncome upon recelpt:

« donations and voluntary coniributions from members (Including whip arounds); and
* government granis

Galne from sale of assais

An ftem of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal (which is at the date the
teciplant obtaine control) or when no future economic bensfits are expected from #s use or
disposal. Any gein or loss arising on deracognition of the asset {calcuiated as the diffarence
hetween the net disposal proceeds and the camying emount of the asset) Is Included In the
staiemant of comprehenaive Income when the asset Is deracognised.

Intoreat Income

Interest revenue Is recognised on an accrual basls using the effective interast method.

Employao henefits

A lisbillty Is recognised for benefils accruing to employees in respact of wages and ealares,

annual leave, long service leave and termination benefits in the circumatances set up below.

Liabilties for short-term employee benefits (as defined in AASE 119 Employee Benefifs) and

termination benefits which are expected to be settled within twelve months of the end of the

reporting period are meagured st thalir nominal amounts. The nominal amourt is calculated with
regard to the rates expected to be paid on seitlement of the liebility.

Other long-term employee bensfits which are expected to be setilad beyond tweive months are
measured as the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made by the Union in
respect of services provided by employees up to reperting date.

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when
emplayses have rendered service entitling them to the contributiona.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognisad in profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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CONSTRUCTION, FORESTRY AND MARITIME EMPLOYEES UNION
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024
NOTE1 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.8 Loases

At inception of a contract, the Union assesses whether a lease exists - i.e. does the conftract
convey the right fo conirol the use of an identified asset for a perlod of time in exchange for
conslderation,

This involves an assessment of whather:
» Tha contract Involvee the use of an Identiflad asset -~ this may be expllcitly or implicitly Identified
within the agreement. If the suppller has a substantive substitution right then there iIs no identified

assat.
+ Tha Unfon has the right to obtsin substantiafly all of the aconomic bensfits from the use of the

assat throughout the period of use.
* Tha Union has the right to direct the use of the asset Le. daclsion making righis in relation to

changing how and for what purpose the asset is used.

Lesses accounting

The nonh-lease tomponents Included in the lease agreement have been separated and are
recognised a8 an expense as incurred, At the legse commencement, the Union recognises a
right-of-use asset and assoclated leage liebility for the lease term. The lease tarm includes
extenslon periods where the Union believes it is reasonably certein that the option will be
exercigsd.

The right-of-use asset Is measured using the cost model where cost on inftlal recognition
comprises of the lease liabllity, initlal direct costs, prepaid lsase payments, estimated cost of
removal and restoration less any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset is depreciated
over the lease term on a straipht line basis end assessed for Impairment in accordance with the

‘Impairment of assets accounting policy.

The leass liability is initially measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments at the
commencement of the lease. The discount rate [s the rate implick in the lease, however where
this cannot be readily determined then the Unlon's Incremental borrowing rate Is used.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the lease llability is measured at amoriised cost using the
offective Interast rate method. The lease liabillty I8 remeasursd whether there is a leasa
modification, change in estimate of the lease term or index upon which the lease payments are
based (e.g. CPI) or a change In the Unlon's assessment of lease tem.

Where the lease liability is remeasured, the right-of-use asset is adjusted to reflect the
remeasuremant or [s recorded in profit or loss if the cartying amount of the right-of-use asset has
been reduced o zero.

Adoption of short-term leases or low value asset exception

The Union has elected to apply the exceptions 1o lease accounting for both short-lerm leases {l.e.
leases with a term of lees than or equal to 12 months) and leases of low-value asasta. The Union
recognises the payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-lna basis
over the lease term.

17/68




CONSTRUCTION, FORESTRY AND MARITIME EMPLOYEES UNION
CONSTRUCTION & GENERAL DIVISION — NATIONAL OFFICE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024
NOTE4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.9

1.10

1.11

112

Cash znd cash aqulvalants

Cash is recognised at its nominal amount. Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposite held at call with bank, other short-term highly Hquld Investrments with original maturity of
3 months or less that are readlly convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to inaignificant

risk of changes In value.

Provialons

Provisions are recognised when the Union has legal or constructive cbligetion, as a result of past
evants, for which it ls probable that an outflow of economic henafits will retult and that culflow can

ba reliably measured.

Financial Instruments
Inktia) recognition and measurement

Financlal assets and financial liabllities are recognised when the Union bacomes a parly to the
contractual provisiona of the Instrument.

Financlal assats

Contract assets and recelvables

A contract assef I8 recognised when tha Union's right to consideration in exchange goods or
servicas that has transferred to the customer when that right Is conditioned on the Union's future
performance or some other condition. A receivable |s recognised if an amourt of consideration
that is unconditional Is due from the customer {i.8. only the passage of time is required before
paymant of the consideration is due).

Contract assets and receivables are subject to Impalment aesessment. Refer to accounting
policles on impairment of financial assets below.

Initlal recognition and measuramant

Financlal assets are classified, at initial recognition, and subsaquently measured at amortlsed cost,
fair value through othar comprehensive income (OCI), or falr value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at injtial recognition depends on the financial assat's
contractual cash flow characterigtics and the Unlon's business model for managing them. With the
exception of trade receivables that do not contein a significant financing component, the Union
Initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, In the case of a financiel assat not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs,

In order for a financlal asset to be classified and measured at amorilsed cost or falr value through
OCI, & needs fo glve rise to cash flows that are ‘sclely payments of principal and interest’ (SPPI) on
the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and 1s performad
at an Instrument level,

The Unlon's busineaa model for managing financial assets refers to how It manages ita financial
assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
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112 Financial assets (Continued)

Purchases or sales of financial asaels that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by reguiation or conventian in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on
tha trade date, l.e., the date that the Unlen commits to purchese or sell the asset.

Subsacquaent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified info categories as:
« Financlal assata at amortiged cost
» Financial assets at fair value through cther comprehengive Income

¢ Financial asgets at fair value through profit or loss

Financlal assets at amortised cost

The Union measures financial assets at amortised cost if both of the following conditions ara met:

a The finangial asset I8 held within a business mode! with the objective to hold finamcial
assels In order to collect contractual cash flows; and

s The contractual tarmg of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solaly paymenis of principal and interest on the principal amount outstancing.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsetuenily measured using the effective Interast (EIR)
method and are subject to Impairment. Gains and lossas are recognised in profit or loss when the
assef is derecognised, modifiled or impaired.

The Union's financlal assets at amortiaed cost Includes trade recaivables, racelivables from other
reporting units and term deposits. The Union does not have financial assels at falr value through
other comprahensive income.

Deracognition

A financial asset Is derecoghizged when:
« Thea rights to receive cash fiows frem the zsset have explred; or
+ The Union has tranafarred lts rights to recelve cash flows from the asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the recelved cash flows in full without material delay to a third parly
under a ‘passe-through' arrangemant; and aither:
&) the Union has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

by the Unlon has heither transferred nor ratained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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NOTE1 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.12 Financial asseis (Continued)

When the Union has transferred Ita rights to recsive cash flows from an asset or haa enterad Into a
pass-through arrangement,  evaluates If, and to what extent, it has reteined the risks and rewards
of cwnership.

When it has nelther transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset,
nor transferred control of tha aseet, the Unlon continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
axtant of its continuing Invoivement together with asscclated liakiity.

Ofiaetting

Financlal assete and financial liabliitles are offset and the net amount is reported In the statement
of financlal position if there s a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there Is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and seftie the labilties

simultanecusly,
Impealrmant
{ Trade recalvables

For trade recelvables that do not have a significant financing component, the Unlon applies a
simplified approach In calouleting expscted credit losses (ECLs) which requires ifstime expecied
credit lossea to be recognlsed from initial recognition of the receivables.

Therefore, the Union does not track changes [n credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowanca
based oh lifatime ECLe at each reporting date. The Union has established a provision matrix that is
based on its historical credit loas experience, acjusted for forward-looking factors apecific to the
debtors and the economic anvironment.

(t)] Debt Instrumants other than trade recelvabies

The Union recognises an allowance for ECLs for all debt instruments not held at falr value through
profit or loss, ECLs are based on the difference betwaan the contractual cash flows due In
accordance with the contract and all the cash fiows that the reporting unit expects to receive,
discountad at an spproximation of the original effective Interest rate. The expected cash fiows will
Include cash flows from the sale of coliateral held or other credit anhancements that are integral to
the goniractual tarms.

ECLs are recognised In two stages:

« For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since
Initlal recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from defaulk events that
are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL).

« For those credit exposures for which there tas been a significant increase In cGredit risk
since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credt losses axpectad over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of tha default (a lifetime ECL).
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1.42

1.13

1.14

Financlal aaseta {Continued)

The Union considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 80 days past due.
However, in certain cases, the Union may also consider a financial asset to ba In default when
Internal or external information indicates that the Union Is unlikely to recelve the outstending
contractual amounts in full, A finenclal asset is writtan off when thers Is no reasshable expectation
of recovering the contractual cash flows,

Financial Liablitlas

Flhancial liabllitiss are classified, st initial recognition, at amortised cost unleas or at fair value
through profit or Joss.

All financlal llabliitiss ara recognised initially et fair value and, in the case of financial llablities at
amottisad cost, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Union's financial liabililes include trade and othar payables, and leases liabiilties.

Subsequent measurement
Financlal llabllities et amortised cost

After initial racognition, trade payables and interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.’ Gaine and logses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derscognised as wall as through the EIR
amortisation process.

Amortised oost Is calculated by taking into account any discount or pramium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortigation Is Included as finance

costs in profit or loss.

Deracognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the llability is discharged or
cancalled or expires. When an existing financlal llability ie replaced by ancther from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing lability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of tha ariginal liabllity
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference In the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or [ogs.

Liabilities ralating to contracts with customers

Contract ilabltitles

A contract liability is recognised if @ payment is received or & payment I8 dua (whichever is earlier)
frorn a customer bsfore the Union fransfer the related goods or sarvices. Confract liabilities
include deferred income. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenug when the Unlon performs
uncler the contract {i.e. transfers contral of the related gooda or services to the customer).
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1.1&

1.18

Contingent llabliities and contingent assets

Contingent liabilittes and contingent assets are not recognised in the Statement of Financlal
Position but are reported in the relevant notes. They may arise from uncertainty as to the
existence of | lablity or asset or represent an existing Uablilty or asset in respect of which the
amount cannot be raliably meaaured. Contingent assets are disclesed when seftiement is
probable but not virtually certaln, and contingent llablities are disclosed whan seftlement s
greater than remote.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Each class of properly, plant and equipment [e carrlad at cost loss, where applicable, any
accumulated depreciation and Impairment of losses. Where the cost model Is used, the asset [a
carried at lis cost leas any accumulated depreciation and any impalrment losses. Cosis Include
purchase price, other directly atiributable coste and the initial estimate of the costs of dlsmantling
and restoring the asset, where applicable.

Dopreciation

Depreciable property, plant and equipment assets are wriiten-off to their eatimated reaitdual valuse
over their estimated useful life using, in all cases, the straight line method of dapreciation.
Depreciation rates {(useful iives), residual values and methods are raviewed at each reporting date
and nacessary adjustments are racognised In the current, or currant and future raporting periods,
as appropriate.

Depreclation rales applying to each class of depreciable asset are based on the following useful
lives:

31 March 2024 3 March 2023
Buildinge 2% 2%
Furniture, fixtures and fittings 5-25% 6-26%
Mator Vehicles 20% 20%
Computer equipment and software 20-33.3% 20-33.3%

Daracognlton

An jtem of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
sconemic benefits are expected from lte use or disposal. Any gain or loss arlsing on the disposal
or retiremant of an item of property, plant and equipment s determined as the difference betwaen
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the profit and loss.
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1.17 Impairment of non-financlal aceets

1.18

1.19

All assets are assessed for impairment at the end of each reporting petiod to the exient that there
ia an impairment triggar. Where indications of impaimment exist, the asset's recoverable amount Is
estimsated, and an Impalrment adjustment made If the assef's recoverable amount is less than the
cafrying amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of iis fair value less costs of disposal and ks
valua In use. Value in use is the present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived
from the asset. Where the future economic bensfit of an asset is not primarily dependant on the
agset's ebility to generate future cash flows, and the asget would be raplaced If the Union were
deprived of the asset, ka recoverable amount s [ts falr value.

In cthar cases, for the purposes of determining recoverable amount, assets are grouped st the
lowast [evels for which there are separately identiflable cash flows which are largely independent
of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of agsets (cash generating unils). Non-financial
asssts that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of tha impairment at each
regorting date.

Taxatlon

The Union Is exempt from Income tax under saction 50.1 of the income Tax Assessment Act 1997
however still has obligation for Fringe Benefits Tax (FBT) and the Goods and Services Tax (GET).

Revenues, expenses and assels are recognised nef of GST except:

. where the amount of GST incurred s not recoverabla from the Aﬁstrallan Taxation Office;

and
. for receivables and payables.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is Included as part
of receivablas or payables.

Cash flows are included in the cash flow statemeant on a gross basis, The GST component of cash
flows arising from Investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the
Australian Taxation QOffice is classified within operating cash flows.

Falr value measurament

The Union does not carry financial instruments at falr value through profit and Ioss, The fair values
of finanelal Instruments measured at amortised cost are disclosed In Note 13,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly fransaction between market participents at the measurement date. The fair valve
measurement is based on the presumption that the trensaction to sell the asset or transfar the
lizbility takes plage either:

¢ In the principal market for the asset or liabillty, or
« In tha absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.
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118

1.20

Falr value measurement (continued)

The principel or the most advantageous market must be accessibia by the tnion. The fair value of
an asset or a labllity is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use whan
pricing the asset or lisblllly, aseuming that market participants act in their aconcmic bast interest.

A fair value measurement of a nan-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling It to
anothar market participant that would use the asset in ite highest and best use.

The Union uses valuation lechnlques that are appropriate In the clrcumstances and for which
sufficiant data are avallable to maasura falr value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable Inputs.

All assets and liabllities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
Input that is significant to the falr value measurement as & whole:

. Level 1—Quoted (unadjusted) market prices In active markets for identical assets or
liabilitles

. Level 2—Valuation tachniques for which the lowest level input that [s significant to the fair
valua measurement Is directly or indirectly observable

. Level 3—Valuation techniquas for which the lowest level input that is significant to the falr
value measurement is unobeervable

For assets and liabilitiea that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Union determines whether transfers have occurred between Levsls In the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level Input that is significant to the falr value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of falr value disclosures, the Union has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basls of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liabillty and the level
of the falr vaiue hisrarchy.

Golng concermn

Tha Unlon is not reliant on tha agreed finenclal support of another reporting unit to centinue on a
going concern basis,

The Union has nat agreed to provide financial suppert to another reporting unit to ensure they can
continue on a going concern basis.
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1.21

1.22

1.23

1.26

Acquisition of Assets and Liabilitles

The Union did not acquire any asset or liability due to an amalgamation under Part 2 of Chapter 3
of the RO Act, a restructure of the branches of the organisation, a determination or revocation by
the General Manager of the Falr Work Commission undar subsections 246(1) or 249(1) of the RO

Act.

Recovery of Wages

The Union has not undertaken any recovery of wages activities during the yeer or the comparative
year,

Economic dependence

The principle source of Income for Construction Foresiry and Maritime Employess Union,
Construction & General Division — National Office is capitation fees from its Diviglons.
Accordingly, the Unlon is economically dependent on the ability of the Divisions to continue to
service the needs of its members on industrial and workplace matters (refer to Note 3A).

Related party disclosures

Related party disclosures in this financial report are presented on an accrual basis. Whilst the
financial records of the Uninn have been kept, as far Bs practiceble, In a menner consiatent with
each of the other reporting units of the organisation, the balances and transactlons reported in this
financial report may differ to those racorded in the financial report of the counterparty reporting
unlt. This may arise due to timing differences in the respective record keeping of the related
reporting units, for example, in the receipt of payments, correspondence in translt or the
alternative categorisation of balances/transactions,

Retalned Eamings

All funds required by the rules of the Union are included in the statement of changes In equity.
The Union has no fund or account for compulsory levies, voluntary contribution or required by the
rukes of the organisation or Union,

Thers has been no withdrawals or tranafer from a fund other than the genaral fund, account, asset
or controlled entity. The Union has not invested monies from a fund or account, other than the

general fund, in any assets,
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.26 Current veraus non-current classification

The Union presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financlal position based on current/non-
current classification.

An asset is current when it is:

Expected to be reallsed or Intended to be sold or consumed In the normal operating cycle;

Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

Expected to be realisad within 12 months after the reporting perlod; or

Cash or cash equivalent unless reatricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liabilty
for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classifled 88 non-current.

A Tlabllity is current when:

It is expected to be settled In the normal operating cycle;

it Is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

It Is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting perlod; or

There is 1o unconditional righta to defer the settiament of the liability for at least 12 monthe

after the reporfing petiod.

> 5 B S

The terms of the liabllity that could, at the option of the counter party, result in its settlement by the
isgue of equity Instruments do not affect its classificetion. The Union classified all other liabilities as

non-current.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024
NOTE2  EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE
There has not been any matter or circumstance occurring subsequant to the end of the financial year

that has significantly affected, or may significantly affect, the operations of the Union, the results of
those operatians, or the stete of affairs of the Unlon in subsequent financial periods,

NOTE3 INCOME 31 March 31 March
2024 2023
$ $

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

A disaggregation of the Union's revenue by type of arrangements is provided on the face of the
Statement of comprehensive Incoma. The table below also sets out a disaggregation of revenue by type

of gustomer.

Type of customer
Members - =
Other reporting units 7,345,667 8,245,879
Govearnment - -
Other parties 1,094,880 494 986
Total revenus from contracts with customers N 8,440,437 8,740,886

Disaggregation of income for furthering activities

A disaggregation of the Unlan’s Income by type of arrangement Is provided on the face of the Statement
of comprahensive income. The table below also sats out & disaggregation of income by funding source:

income flindlng sources
Members - -
Other reporting units -
Govemment - -
Other partios - 165000 . -
Total Income for furthering activities 165,000 -
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NOTE3  INCOME (CONTINUED) 31 March 31 March
2024 2023
$ $

Nota 3A: Capliation fass
Capitation faes by branch (CFMEU Construction &

Goneral)

Victoria and Tasmania 2,627,324 2,272,168
New South Wales 1,533,284 1,354 4681
Queensland - -
CFMEU Industrial Union of Employeas QLD State C&G

Division (CFMEUQ) 1,100,164 802,827
South Australia 189,556 168,401
Western Australia 484,090 423,925
Australisn Capital Territory . 188,857 150,240
Total capitation feos 5,991,065 5,249,723
Note 3B: Levies

Campalgn levies fees recelved (GFMEU Construction &

General)

Victoria and Tasmania 315,480 265,020
New South Weles 162,810 156,190
Queensland - -
GFMEU Industrial Union of Employees QLD Stata C&G

Division (CFMEUG) 133,130 116,680
South Australia 21,700 18,980
Western Australia £8,660 £5,760
Australian Capital Territory 18,440 20,800
Total levies 70220 . B33,720
Note 3C; Interest

Interest ~ financial assets at amortised cost . 210,679 ... 138,837
Total Intorest — 210,679 138,937

Note 30: Net galns from sale of assets

Gain on sale of assets N - 48,861,
Total net gain from sale of assets __,__, - 48,851,

Note 3E: Grants or danatlons

Grants - -
Donativns 155,000 -
Total grants or donatlona 185000 e
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NOTE 3 INCOME (CONTINLED) 31 March 31 March
2024 2023
$ $

Note 3F: Other Revenue
Attendance Feas - 180,560
Wagss relmbursements 473,362 352,428
Advertising revenue 125,500 159,125
Divislonal conference sponsorship 750,000 38,364
QOther Income 179,671 -
Financial support from ancther reporting unit ” - . -
Total other revenue ‘ 1,528,473 _ 718,485

NOTE4  EXPENSES

Note 4A: Employes expenses

Holders of offlce:
Wages and salariea 651,280 700,719
Superannuation 50,718 76,237
Leave and other entitlernents (237,081) (20,815)
*Separaticn end redundancies 12,075 18,805
A0ther smployae expenses . 459,375 76,200
Subtotal employee expenses holders of office , 936,357 860,325
Employees cthar than offlce holders:
Wages and salarles 1,687,456 1,628,627
Superannuation 179,536 160,193
Leave and other entitlements ' 25,879 €0,708
*Separation and redundancies 53,360 50,025
COther employee expenses 116,603 . 116,844
Subtotal employee sxpenses non- office holders _ 2,062,834 1,916,285
Total employee expenses ) 2900191 . 2,776,820

*Separation and redundancies Include cantributions to the redundancy fund.

AZachary Alan Smith Is the currant Divisional Secretary of CFMEU C8G National Office and the Divislonal Branch
Secretary of the CFMEU Construction & General Divialon Ausirallan Capite! Territory Branch (CFMEU C20
ACT). The remuneration for Zach $mith is managed and recorded by the CFMEU C&G ACT brench. The CFMEL
C&G Matlonal Office compensates the CFMEU G&G ACT branch through monthly Administration charges for
Zach 8mith's services to the CFMEYU C&G National Office. The Adminletration charge to CFMEU C&G ACT
Branch for Zech Smith's services was $376,850 for the year ended 31 March 2024 and has been recordad as
other employee expenses under Helders of Office.
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CONSTRUCTION, FORESTRY AND MARITIME EMPLOYEES UNION
CONSTRUCTION & GENERAL DIVISION - NATIONAL OFFICE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARGH 2024

NOTE 4 EXPENSES (CONTINUED) 31 March 31 March
2024 2023
$ $
Note 4B;: Capitation feas
CFMEU National Office 1,617,804 1,228,681
Total Capltation feas 1,617,804 _lz2ase8t
Note 4C: Administration expanses
Conslderation to ampioyera for payroll deductions - -
Compulscry levy - -
Voluntary levy - -
Fees/allowances - meeting and conferences - -
Conference and meeting expenses 08683 47,045 .
Total administration expenses 208,583 47,045
Note 4D: Grants or donatlons
Grants:
Total paid that were §1,000 or less - "
Total paid that exceeded $1,000 - -
Donatlons:
Total paid that were $1,000 or less - -
Total paid thet exceedsd $1,000 174,353 1,009,500
Total grants or donatlons 174363 1,008,600
Note 4E: Depreciation and amortisation
Dopraclation:
Land and Building - -
Furnitura, fidures and fitiings 77,400 88,623
Motor vehicles 25,885 38,833
Computer squipment and software 27,613 28,638
Right of Use asset — Note 9 43,888 43 688
Total depreciation and amortisation 174,595 197,782
Note 4F: Finance costs
Bank fess and charges 1,116 1,382
Interest axpanse — [eage liabllty ~ Note © 12,836 14,523
Total finance costa 13,850 16,886
Nota 4G: Legal costs
Litigation 203,958 485,636
Other lagal matters 682,287 5117
_ 480,752

268,248

Total legal costs
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CONSTRUCTION, FORESTRY AND MARITIME EMPLOYEES UNION

CONSTRUCTION & GENERAL DIVISION - NATIONAL OFFICE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024
NOTE 4 EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

Note 4H: Accounting and Audit fees

External audit expense
Other services

Total accounting and audit fees

Note 4i: Other expenses

Penalties — via RO Act or the Fair Work Act 2009
Administration and Finance
Advertising & Marketing

Bad Debts — CFMEU C&G SA Branch
Campaign expenses
Communications

Computer and website expenses
Insurance

Loss on disposal of assets

Media monitoring costs

Merchandise purchases

Motor vehicle expenses

Occupancy expenses

Printing, Postage and Stationery
Sponsorship

Travel expenses

Other expenses

Total other expenses

Note 4J: Affiliation Fees

Public Services International (Australia) Lid

Australian People for Health & Education Development Abroad
Inc

The International Centre for Trade Union Rights

Total Affiliation Fees

NOTES  ASSETS
Note 5A: Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash at bank

Total cash and cash equivalents

3 March 31 March
2024 2023
$ $
32,000 30,900
4,808 2,048
36,808 32,048
180,320 77,912
200,736 151,760
- 384,510
897,541 1,052,537
(25,764) 27,433
338,382 845,453
82,739 36,306
13,569 728
48,000 48,000
- 305
25,596 25,179
79,299 87,592
4,956 8,696
418,379 425,815
10,671 11,555
2,274,424 3,183,781
15,000 -
6,985 -
1,453
23,438 -
11,762,908 4,937,581
11,762,908 4,937,681
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CONSTRUCTION, FORESTRY AND MARITIME EMPLOYEES UNION
CONSTRUCTION & GENERAL DIVISION — NATIONAL OFFICE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

NOTEE  ASSETS (CONTINUER) 31 March 31 March

2024 2023
$ $

Note 5B: Trade and Other Receivables

Current

Trade receivables 10,020 17,601

Othar recelvablos 85,673 88,660

Current recelvables from other reporting units

CFMEL Construction and General Division

- Victoria and Tasmania Branch 206,685 444,516

~ New South Wales Branch 59,045 188,063

- CFMEU Industrial Union of Empicyees QLD State C&G 136,882 110,887

Divigion {CFMEUQ)

- South Australia Branch 190,274 27,991

- Western Australla Branch 18,660 34,346

- Australian Capital Territory Branch _ 920 16,900

Total current trade and other recelvables 798,940 626,663

Less allewance for expected credit losses - -

Total allowance for expected credit lossus - -

Total tracle and other recelvables (nef) 798,949 928,863

Please refsr to note 1.24 for further commentary in relstion to the conslstency of transactions and

balances batween reporting units.

Ne allowance for expanted credit losses has been raised agalnst the reporting uniie balanges shown,

in accordance with the accounting policy note 1.12 and note 12A.
Note 5C: Other Currant Assets

Prapayments — other

Total other current assois

Nota 5D: Financlal Assets

Financlal assets at amortiesd cost

Total financlal asasta

28,900 184,480
28,900 184,480
3,000,000 5000000
3,000,000 5,000,000
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CONSTRUCTION, FORESTRY AND MARITIME EMPLOYEES UNION

CONSTRUCTION & GENERAL DIVISION — NATIONAL OFFICE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

NOTES  ASBETS (CONTINUED)

Note SE: Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment compriges of:

Fumiture, fixtures and fittings

Moter vehicles

Computer equipment and software
Total property plant and equipment

Furniture, fixturas and fittings:

At cost

Less accumnulated depreciation
Total furniture, fixtures and fittings

Motor vehlcles:

At cost

Lese accumulated depraciation
Tatal motor vehicles

Computar aquipment and software:
At cost
Less accumulated depreciation

Total computer equipmant antl software

2024

Balance at hoginning of the year
Additions

Disposals

Dapraciation expense — Note 4E

Carrying amount at end of the year

2023

Bafance at haginning of tho year
Additiona

Disposals

Depraclation expense — Note 4E
Carrying amount at end of the year

31 March 31 March

2024 2023

$ $

23,229 99,438

150,127 122,086

43,366 48,405

- 218,722 270,937

440,511 439,309

{417,282) _ (_339,873)__

23229 99,436

184,139 165,668

(34012) (43,672)

150,127 122,096 .

382,259 360,885

(338,883) . (311,280)

43,366 49,405

Fumikiure, Motor Computer Total
fixtures and vehicles  equipment
fittings and goftware

i 5 $ $

99,426 122,096 49,405 270,937

1,202 74,826 21,674 97,802

- (R0,910) - {20,910)

(77,409) (25, 885) (27.813) {130,807)

23229 150,127 43,386 218,722

Furniture, Motor Computer Total
fixtures and vehicles aequipment
fittings and software

S $ $ 3

184,857 126,964 59,388 371,209

1,202 109,313 16,282 128,797

- (75,248) (727 (75.975)

(86,823) (28,933) {28,538) {154,004)

89438 122088 49406 270,937 .
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CONSTRUCTION, FORESTRY AND MARITIME EMPLOYEES UNION
CONSTRUCTION & GENERAL DIVISION ~ NATIONAL OFFICE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

NOTE & LIABILITIES 31 Mareh 31 March
2024 2023
$ $
Note 6A: Trade and Other Payables
Curront
Trade payables and accruals 588,379 304,828

Trade Payables to other reporting unlis
GFMEU Construction and General Divieion
- Australian Capital Teritory Branch 9,235 42,612
CFMEU Industrial Unlon of Employees QLD State C&G
Division (CFMELIQ) ~ 8,762 7AR
Consideration to amployers for payroll deductions n -
Legal costs
Litigation - .
Other legal matters - -
GST payable 246,626 72,701

Wages collacted on bahalf of members N - ) e

Total trade and other payables T 831,202 427,784

Pleasa refer to note 1.24 for further commentary in relation to the consistency of transactions and
balances betwean reporting units.

Maote 6B: Employee Provislons

Employee provisions comprises of:

Current

Provision for other leave 237,938 257,597

Provigien for annual leave 476,032 482,591

Provision for long service loave 280,452 466,260 -
1004460 1,208,457

Non-current ,

Pravislon for long service leave , 11285 18480

Total employae provisions ' 1105725 1,226,637

Non-currant provisions represent long service leave entitiements owing to employess who have not
completed 5 continuous years of gervice with the Unlon.
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CONSTRUCTION, FORESTRY AND MARITIME EMPLOYEES UNION
CONSTRUCTION & GENERAL DIVISION = NATIONAL OFFICE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

NOTE 6 LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 31 March 31 March
2024 2023
$ $
Note 8B: Employsa Provislons {Continued)
Office Holders:
Annual leave 91,290 116,795
Long service loave 47,220 223,421
Saparetions and redundanclas - -
Other _ 57,976 84,242
Subtotal employes provisions—office hoiders . 1e6488 434 458
Employeas other than office holders:
Annual leave 384,742 356,706
Long servioe [save . 254,637 263,328
Separations and redundancies - -
Other 179880 163,355
Subtotal emplo visions—employees other than B ' '
e oo pro ploy _ stem 792470
Total employee provisions . 1,016725 1,228,037

Note 6C; Deposlits held

Deposite held relates fo funds recaived from Divisional Branches for the AS400 Modernisation
Project. Refer to Note 10(b) for further commentary an AS400 Project. The balance comprises of:

CFMEL Constructlon and Generat Division

- Vietoria and Tasmanla Branch 3,303,330 -

- New South Wales Branch 1,988,145 “

- South Australla Branch 227379 .

-~ Wastarn Australla Branch 816,311 -

- Australlan Capital Temitory Branch 218,423 -

CFMEU Industrial Union of Employess QLD State C&G 1997 §75 A

Division (CFMEUQ) e

Less funds transferred to AS400 Praject (3,448 ,8495) -
4,185,268 .

NOTE?  CASH FLOW

Note 7A: Cash Flow Reconciliation

Reconcillation of cash and cash squivalants as per Statament of financial
poslition to Statement of cash flows:

Cash and cash equivalents as per:

Staterment of cash flows 11,762,808 4,837,581 !
Statement of financial position 11,762,508 4,937,581
Differance s ) - .
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CONSTRUCTION, FORESTRY AND MARITIME EMPLOYEES UNION

CONSTRUCTION & GENERAL. DIVISION ~ NATIONAL OFFICE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024
NOTE7  CASH FLOW

Naote TA: Cash Flow Reconciliation

Raconclliation of surplus/{deficit) to net cash from
operating actlvities:
Surplus/(deficit) for the year

Adjustments for non-cash ltems
Depraclation expense — Note 4E
{Gain)L.osa on disposal of assets
Finance cosls on lease liabilty

Changes in assetu/liabilities
{Increase)/decrease in trade and other recelvables
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments
Increasef(decraase) in trade and other payables
Increase/(decraase) in deposits held
Increase/{decrease) in employea provisions

Nat cash from (used by) operating activities

Note 7E: Caah flow information

Net cash fiows relating to roporting units (inc, G8T):

CFMEU Construction and Genereal
- Victoria and Tasmania Branch

~ New South Wales Branch

~ Queensland Branch

- South Australia Branch

- Western Australia Brangh

- Ausiralian Capltal Territory Brahoh
CFMEU Industrial Union of Employees QLD State C&G
Division (CFMEUQ)

CFMEU National Office

Mining and Energy Union VIC
Maritime Unlon of Australia

Net cash flows

Plaase refer 1o note 1.24 for further commantary in relation to the consistency of transaclions and

balances betwsen reporting units,

31 March 31 March
2024 2023
$ 5
107,955 (2,103,278)
174,585 107,762
13,660 (48,123)
12,835 14,523
127,014 (419,920)
156,580 10,362
403418 (166,828)
4,166,268 -

(211,212) 30,862

4,069,822 (2,665,591)
7,731,502 2,705,801
4,500,304 1,642,135
(3,475) -
420,745 217,798
1,347,806 499,020
(80,108) 236,801
2,830,961 1,119,637
(1,846,55) (1,364,878)
- 720
{11,513) -
14,910,755 5,066,734
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GCONSTRUCTION, FORESTRY AND MARITIME EMPLOYEES UNION
CONSTRUCTION & GENERAL DIVISION ~ NATIONAL OFFICE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

NOTE 7 GASH FLOW (CONTINUED) : 31 March 31 March
2024 2023
$ $

Note 7C: Credit standby arrangements and loan facllities

CBA Mastercard Facility

Used facility 23,310 20,210
Unused facility 48,800 49,790
Total facility N 70,000 70,000

Note 7D: Non-cash transactions

There have been no non-cash financing or Investing activities during tha year ended 31 March 2024 (31
March 2023: NIl).

NOTE8  RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Note BA: Relatad Party Transactlons for the Reporting Perlod

Being the National Office of the Construction & General Division of the Construction, Forestry and
Maritime Employess Union (‘the Unlen"), from time-to4ime the Union coordinates various
administrative activitles on behalf of its varlous constituent State divisional branches. This includes the
eollation of certaln costs, which are apportioned to the appropriate branches and inveices In full,
Accordingly, with tha Union merely the faciiitator of such transactions between Independent third
parties (and there is no profit component in recharging the respective branches), these are not
considerad to be related pary incomes/expenses of the Union and hence are not required to be
diselosed. Noiwithstanding this, the transfer of funds to meet thase obligations remained related party
transactions, and eccordingly have been disclossd In the related pary cash flows reporied below.
Addltionally; any amounts outstanding as at balance date between related parties are disclosed below.

The Unlon's main releted parties are as follows:

(a) Key manageiment personnel

Any parson(s) having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of
the Union, directly or Indirectly, Including any Divisional Executive (whether executive or othenwise) of

that entity are consldersd key menagement personnel.

For detall of remuneration disclosure relating to key management personhel, refar to Note 8B: Key
Managament Personnel Remuneration for the Reporting Period.

(b} Other ralated partles

All Reporiing Units of the Consfruction, Forestry and Maritime Employees Union (CFMEU) are
considered to be related parties. Reporting Unlts are defined in Sectlon 242 of the Fair Work
{Registored Organisations) Act 2009 ("the RO Act”).
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CONSTRUCTION, FORESTRY AND MARITIME EMPLOYEES UNION
CONSTRUCTION & GENERAL DIVISION — NATIONAL OFFICE

NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024
NOTES  RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

Note 8A: Related Party Transactions for the Reporting Perlod (Continued)

(¢) Rolated Party Transactions

Transactions between related parties are on normal commerclal terms and conditions no more
tavourable than those available to other parties unless otherwlse stated.

From time to time the Unlon makes expenditure which relate to itself as well as other Reporting Units
of the CFMEU, These expenditures are then reimbursed to the Unlon at cost hence they are not
conelderad to be related parly transactions,

Plaass refer 1o nots 1.24 for further commentary in reletion to tha consistency of transactions and
balances between reporting units.

Related Party Information

Transactions with related partlss:

() Capltation fees charged (excluding GST)

Refar to Note 3A,
(if) Campalgn leviee charged (excluding GST)
Refar to Note 3B.
(i} Wages reimbursement recaived from branches
' 31 March 31 March
2024 2023
$ $
CFMEU Conatructlon and General
- Victoria and Tasmanla Branch 208,800 382,436
- Mew South Wales Branch 27,220 -
- Australian Capital Tertitory Branch 16,149 -
{iv) Sponsorship contribution received from branches
CFMEU Construction and General
- Victorla and Tasmania Brench 100,000 -
{v) Reimbursement of conference received from branches
Maritime Union of Australia 3491
(vi) Donatlon contribution received from branches
CFMEU Construction and General
- Victorla and Tasmania Branch _ 155,000 -
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CONSTRUCTION, FORESTRY AND MARITIME EMPLOYEES UNION
CONSTRUCTION & GENERAL DIVISION ~ NATIONAL OFFICE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024
NOTES  RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

Note 8A: Ralated Party Transactlons for the Reporting Perlod {(Continued)

Related Party Information

Transactions with related partles:

{vii) Capitation fees expense
CFMEU National Office

{vil]) Rent expense and outgolngs

CFMEU Construction and General — Victoria and Tasmania
Branch

{Ix} IT costs relmbursement

CFMEU Construction and General
- Westarn Australla Branch

(%) Donatlon expense
Maritime Union of Ausiralia for ILWU Appeal

() Alrfare expenses

CFMEU Construction and General

- Western Australia Branch

CFMEU Industrial Union of Employees QLD State CAG
Division (CFMEUQ)

{xii) Bad Debts Written Off

CFMEU Construction and General
- Bouth Australia Branch

{xill} Elactricity charges

CFMEU Construction and General
- New South Wales Branch

{xiv) Reimbursement of Travel expenses

CFMEU Construction and General
- Australian Capital Territory Branch

31 March
2024

1,617,884

70|868

20,000

15,363

653
10,024

5,836

150,993

31 March
2023

$

1,228,681

80,868

1475
B,668

384,510

4,233

38,738
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CONSTRUCTION, FORESTRY AND MARITIME EMPLOYEES UNION
CONSTRUCTION & GENERAL DIVISION — NATIONAL OFFICE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED}

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024
NOTE8  RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

Note BA: Related Party Transactlons for the Reporting Perlod (Continuad)

Related Party Information

Transactions with related parties:

{v) Reimbursement of staff cost

CFMEW Construction and General

- Australian Capital Territory Branch

CFMEW Industrial Union of Employees QLD State C&G
Division (GFMEUQ)

{xvl) Relmbursement of ACTU Legal Fund
CFMEU National Offica

{xvl) Relmbureament of accommodation expenses
CFMEU National Office

{xvii) Reimbursement of conference expenses

SFMEL Construction and General
- Australlan Capital Teritory Branth
CFMEU National Office

(i} Other expanaes (incomns)

CFMEU Conastruction and General

- Victoria an¢ Tasmanla Branch

~ New South Wales Branch

- Guesnsland and Northemn Territory Branch

- Australian Capital Territory Branch

CFMEU Industrial Union of Employess QLD State C&G
Division (CFMEUQ)

31 March

413,300
68,900

30,711

4488
8,340

671
1,000
3,158
5,650

31 March
2023

77,912

16,560
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CONSTRUCTION, FORESTRY AND MARITIME EMPLOYEES UNION
CONSTRUCTION & GENERAL DIVISION - NATICNAL OFFICE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED}

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024
NOTES  RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

Note BA: Related Party Transactions for the Reporting Perlod (Continued)
Related Party Information

Transactions with related partles:

Relatad Party Balances

() Trade and other recelvables

" Refar to Note 5B.

(i) Trade and other payables
Refer o Note BA.
(li) Prapayments
Refer to Note 6C.
{iv) Deposits held
Refer to Nota 6C.
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CONSTRUCTION, FORESTRY AND MARITIME EMPLOYEES UNION
CONSTRUCTION & GENERAL DIVISBION - NATIONAL OFFICE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3f MARCH 2024
NOTES  RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

Note BB: Key Management Personnel Remuneration for the Reporting Parlod

Key management personnel comprise those individuals who have the authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Union. Tha Unlen has determined that key
management personnel comprises of!

s Zachary Alen Smith {Divisional Secretary)

« Dave Noonan (Former Divisional Secretary) — resigned 31/3/2023

» Andrew Sutherland (Divisional Assistant Secrefary)

» Jason Jennings (Divisional Asslstant Secretary)

During the year, the key managemant parsonnal of the Unlon were ramurerated as follows:

31 March 3 March
2024 2023
$ $
Short-term amployes heneflts

Salary 615,604 732,040

Annual leave movement (25,508) {42,975)

Performance bonus - "

Other employee beneflis ga7es . 76,280
Total shori-term employsa benefits = 673,114 764,354
Post-smployment benefits:

Superannuation 50,718 76,237

Redundancy fund 12078 . 18,8686
Total post-smployment benefits ‘ 62793 96,132
COther long-term beneflis:

Long-service (eave - {176,200) {161)
Total other iong-term benefits (176,200) (181)
Tarminatlon boneflte o - -
Total \ 559,707 860,325

No other transactions accurred during the year with elected officars, close family members or ather
related parties than those related to thelr membership or employment and en terms no more
favourable than those applicable to any other member of employes.

Zachary Alan Smith is the current Divisional Secretary of CFMEU C8G Nafional (ffice and the
Divisional Branch Secretary of the CFMEU Construction & General Division Australian Capital
Territory Branch (CFMEU C8G ACT). The ramuneration for Zach Smith is managed and recorded by
the CFMEU C&G ACT branch. The CFMEU C&G National Office compensgtes thea CFMEU C3G AGT
branch through monthly Adminigiration charges for Zach Smith’s sevices to the CFMEU C&G
Natlonal Office. The Administration charge to GFMEU C&G ACT Branch for Zagh Smith'a servicea
wae $376,850 for the year ended 31 March 2024 (2023: Nil). This chergs is not included in the above
table.

There have been no payments made during the financlal year to a former related parly of the Linien.
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CONSTRUCTION, FORESTRY AND MARITIME EMPLOYEES UNION
GONSTRUCTION & GENERAL DIVISION -~ NATIONAL OFFICE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

NOTE 9 LLEASES
The Unlon as a lessee
The Union has a lease over property.

Information relating to the |ease in place for property and assoclated balances and transactions are
providad balow.

Terms and conditions of jeasas:

Premiges is loased over a 5 ysar period with an option to extend for a further 5 years, The lease
payments are increased on an annual basis by 3% per annum.

Right-of-use assets
Property

$
Year ended 31 March 2024
Balance at 1 April 2023 273,062
AddHions to right-of-use assets -
Remeasurement .
Depreciation charge ___{43,688)
Balance at end of year 229,364
Right-of-usae assets

Property

$
Year ended 31 March 2023
Balance at 1 Aptil 2022 315,928
Addltions to right-of-use assats -
Remeasurement 812
Depreciation charge _ {43.688)
Balance at end of year 273052
Lease |iabllitlas

2024 2023
$ $

Current 44 959 41,468
Non-current 234304 279,283
Total . 279263 320,762
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CONSTRUCTION, FORESTRY AND MARITIME EMPLOYEES UNION
CONSTRUCTION & GENERAL DIVISION ~ NATIONAL OFFICE

NOTES TO THE FINANCGIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED}
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024
NOTES LEASES (CONTINUED)

The maturity analysis of lease (iabllites based on contractual undlscounted cash flows is shown in the
table below:
Total

undiacountad Loase liabllities
loane included In this Balance

<1 year 1-8years > Gyaars flabilitios Sheet
$ $ $ $ $
2024
Lease liabilities 55,963 241,154 16,824 2,94 279,283
208
Lease liabilitles 54,333, 234,180 78,811 367,274 320,782
Extanslon optlons

The building lesse containg an extanslon option which allows the Uinion to extend the lease term the
original non-cancellable period of the lease.

At commencement date and each subsequent reporting dete, the Union assesses where i [a reasonably
caraln that the extension option will be exerclsed. All extansion options are expected o be exercised.

Statement of Profit or Loas and Other Comprehensive Incomeé

The amounts recognised In the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income relating to
leases where the Urion is a lessee are shown below:

2024 2023
$ $
Interest exponse 12,835 14,523
Dapreclation of right-of-use assets 43,688 43,688
Statement of Cash Flows
Total cash outflow for leases 54,334 52,750
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CONSTRUCTION, FORESTRY AND MARITIME EMPLOYEES UNION
CONSTRUCTION & GENERAL DIVISION — NATIONAL OFFICE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024
NOTE 10 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES, ASSETS AND COMMITMENTS

(a) Confingent ilabilities and commitments

Given the principal actlvities of the Unilon, the Union is routinely subject to legal actions against it
regarding industrial relations matters In serving its membership. As at the date of this report, there are no
such matters in place which would require disclosure as a contingent liabllity.

As sn organisation, the Congtruction Forestry and Marltime Employees Union, Construction & General
Division - Natlonal Office may be liable to contribute funds to the settiement of legal coste on behalf of
branches. As at balance date, thera are no such known matters and any relevant costs have been
appropriately accrued and disclosed.

(b) Capital expenditure commitments

The National Office of the Construction & General Division of the Construction, Forestry and Maritime
Employees Union (“the Unlon") s facilitating the AS400 Modernisation Project on the instruction from the
Divislonal Branches of the Union. The cost of the A8400 Modernisation Project Is estimated to be
$213,400,954 over a 5 year period. The Divisional Branches of the Union will contribute towards the
project on a pro-rata basis and have signad an internal agreement to this effect. The Union is merely the
fagilitator of this transactions between the independent third partles and the divisional branches and there
is no profit component In recharging the respective branches. Refer to Note 6C for deposits held on
bahalf of the branches. Other than the above, there are no other capital expenditure commitments at 31

March 2024 (2023: NII).

3 March 31 March
2024 2023
$ $
NOTE11 REMUNERATION OF AUDITOR
Value of tha services provided
Financlai statement audit services 32,000 30,900
Olher services 4,808 2048
Total remuneration of audiftor 36,808 32,040

Other services include accounting and tex services.
NOTE 12 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial Risk Management Policy
The Committee of Management monitors the Union's financial risk management policies and exposure

and approves financial transactions within the scopa of these policies.

The Committee of Management's overall risk management strategy seeks to assist the Union In mesting
its financial targets, while minimising potential adverse effects on financial performance, lis functions
include the review of the use of credit risk policies and future cash flow requirements.

Specific Financlal Risk Exposures and Management

The main risks the Union ia exposed to through Its financial instruments are interest rate risk, crecit risk,
liquidity risk, and market risk consisling predominantly of Interest rate rik. There have been no
substantive changes in the types of rigks the Union is exposed to, how these risks aerise, or the
Committee of Management's cbjectives, policles and processes for managing or measuring the risks from
tha pravious perfod.
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CONSTRUCTION, FORESTRY AND MARITIVE EMPLOYEES UNICN
CONSTRUCTION & GENERAL DIVISION — NATIONAL OFFICE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL 8TATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024
NOTE 12 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Nota 12A; Cradit Risk (Continused)

The Union's financial instrumenta are listed below:

31 March 31 March
2024 2023
$ $
Financial Assets
Ceish and cash equivalents 11,762,908 4,937,581
Trade and other recolvables 798,949 926,863
Financial assets — at amortised cost . 3,000,000 6,000,000
16,661,857 = 10,864444
Financlal Liabllitles
Trada and cther payables 831,202 355,123
Leasa Liabilty 278283 320,762
1,110,465 675,885

Tha Unlon has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditwarthy counterparties as a means of mitigating
the risk of financial loss from defaults,

Management considers that all the financial assets that are not Impeired for aach of the reporting dates
under review are of good quality, Including those that are past due.

The credit risk of liquid funds, and other shori-erm financial assets is considered negligible, since the
counterparties are reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings.

The class of assets describad as Trade and Other Receivables Is considered fo be the main source of
credit risk related to the Unlon. Onh a geographical basis, the Unlon's trade and other receivables are all

based in Australia.

The Union applies the simplified approach o providing for expectad cradit losses prescribad by AASB 9,
which parmits the use of the Ifetime expected loss provision for all accounis receivable, To measurs the
expected credit losses, accounts recelvable have been grouped based on ghared cradit risk
characteristios and the days past dus. The loss allowance provision as at 31 March 2024 Is determined
as follows. The expected crexiit losses below also incorporate forward looking information.

The balance of recelvables that remsin within initial trade terms (a= delalled In the table) are considered
to be of high oradit quality.
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CONSTRUCTION, FORESTRY AND MARITIME EMPLOYEES UNION
CONSTRUCTION & GENERAL DIVISION -~ NATIONAL OFFICE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024
NOTE 12 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED}

Note 12A; Cradit Risk (Continued)
Financial assets that were past due but not impalred for 2024

Within
0to 30 3 toso é1 to 80
tl;r::: days days days 80+ days Total
$ $ $ $ $
Expected loas rata 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Gross Camying amount 798,049 - . - - 768,949

Expected credit [oss - - - - . -

Financlal assets that were past due hut not Impaired for 2023

Within
0to 30 31 to 80 61 to 90
trade 90+ days Total
terms days days deys
$ $ $ B $
Expected loss rate 0% . 0% 0% C% % 0%
Gross Carrying amount 826,863 - - - - 928,863

Expectad credlt loss - - - . .

The Unich has no signiflcant concentration of credit risk with respect to any single counferparty or group
of counterparties other than those raceivables specifically provided for and mentioned within Note 5B.
The main source of credit risk to the Union is sonskierad to relate fo the class of assets described as
"Trade recelvable and other raceivakles".

The Union always measures the loss allowance for accounts recsivables at an amount equal to lifetime
axpected cretlit loss. The expected credit losses on accounts recelvable are estimated using & provision
matrix by reference to past default experience of the debtor and an analysis of the deblor's current
financlal pogition, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions of the
industry in which the debtors operate and an agsessment of both the current ns well as the forecast
direction of condiilone at the reporting date.

There has been no change in the estimation technigques or significant assumptions made during the
currant reporting period.

The Union writes off an account receivable when thers is Information indicating that the debtor is In
gevere financlal difficulty and thers is no realistic prospect of recovery (g when the debter has besn
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptey procsadings) or when the trade recalvables are
over lwo years past due, whichever occurs earfier. None of the accounts receivable that have been

written off are subject to enforcement activities,

Coilateral held as security 3
The Unlon doas net hold collateral with respect to its recelvables at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: Nil).
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CONSTRUCTION, FORESTRY AND MARITIME EMPLOYEES UNION
CONSTRUCTION 8 GENERAL DIVISION -~ NATIONAL OFFICE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

NOTE 12 FINANGCIAL INSTRUMENTS {CONTINUED)

Note 12B: Liguldity Risk

Liguldity risk arises from the possibility that the Unlon might encounter difficulty in settling #ts debis or
ctherwise mesting its obligations In relation to financial llabllities. The Union manages this rigk through the

following mechanisms:

praparing forward looking cash flow estimetes;

maintaining a reputable credit profile;

rianaging credit risk related to financial assets;

only investing surplus cash with major financial Institutions; and
comparing the maturity profilo of financial liabilitios with the raalisation profile of financial assets.

The tables below refiect an undiscounted contractual maturity analyeis for non-derivalive financial
liabilities. The Unlon does not hold directly any derivative financlal fiabiiities.

Contractual maturities for financlal lisbliities

2024
Trade and other payables

Lease Liability

2023
Trade and other payables
Leass Liability

A278TA

167,687

on 1-2 2-5
Domand < 1ysar years yoars > 5 years Total
$ $ $ $ $

831,202 - - - - 831,202

- 44,959 48619 185686 - 278,283

ga1202 44950 48618 166885 . 4100485

427,874 - - i - 427874

- 41499 44050 167867 76617 320,762

41490 44,959 76,617 748,836
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CONSTRUCTION, FORESTRY AND MARITIME EMPLOYEES UNION

CONSTRUCTION & GENERAL DIVISION - NATIONAL OFFICE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

NOTE 12 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Note 12C: Market Risk {(Continued)

Interest rate risk

Exposure to interest rate risk arlses on financial assets and financial liabliities recognised at the
end of the reporting period whareby a future change In interest rates will affect future cash flows
or the fair value of fixed rate financial instruments. The Union's exposure to interest rale risk
arises from its cash at bank and term deposits.

The finanslal Instruments which exposa the Union fo interest rate risk are limited to lis cash

reserves.

Forelgn exchange rlak

‘The Unicn is not exposed fo fluctuations In foreign currencles.

Price risk

The Union Is not exposed to equity securitles price risk as It does not have equlty instruments.

Sensitivity Analysls

While the Unlon Is exposed to changes In Interest ratés, due to the fact that any expected change in
interest rates would have no significant impact on profit and loss or squity, no sensitivity analysis has

been considerad necessary.

Note 12D: Changes in liabllities arising from financing actlvities

2024

Current intersst- baaring loans and
borrowlngs

Non-current Interest-bearing loans
and borrawings

Total liablities from financing
activities

2023

Current interest- bearing loans and
borrowings

Non-current intarest-bearing loans
and borrowings

Total liabilities from financing
activilles

358,177

1 Aprll Gash New Other 3
2023 March
flows Leases 2024
$ $ $ ] $
41409 (41,499 - 44958 44,959
279,243 - «  (44,850) 234,304
. 320,762  (41,499) - - 279,283
1 Aprll Cash New Other by |
2022 March
flows Loases 2023
$ $ $ $ 5
38,137 (38,137) - 41489 41499
320,040 - - (40777 279,263
(38,137 - 722 320,762
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CONSTRUCTION, FORESTRY AND MARITIME EMPLOYEES UNION

CONSTRUCTION & GENERAL DIVISION - NATIONAL OFFICE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024
NOTE 13 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
Falr Vajues

Fair value estimation

The fair valuas of financial assets and liabllities ara presented in the follawing table and can be compared
to thelr carrying values as presented In the statement of financial position. Falr value is the amount at
which an asset could ba exchanged, or a llablity settled, between knowledgeeble, willing parties at an
arm's langth tranaection. The following table containe the camylng amounts and related falr values for the

Unlon's financlal assets and liabllties:

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Canrying Canying
Feotnote value Falr value value Fair valug
$ 5 $ $

Financlal assots
Cash and cash equivalents 11,762,908 11,762,808 4,937,581 4,937,581
Tragde and other recelvables 798,949 798,640 926,883 826,863
Financlal asseis 8,000,000 3,000,000 5_.000.090 5,000,000
Total financlal assets 15,661,857 15,661,857 10,864,444 10,884,444
Financlal Habilitles
Trade and other payables 831,202 831,202 427,784 427,784
Lease Liabilities . 270263 279263 320,762 320,762
Total financial liabliitles _ 1,110,465 1,110,488 748548 = 748,646

Cash and cash equivalents, accounts recelvable and other debtors and accounts payable and other
payables are shori-term instruments in nature whose carrying value is equivalent to fair value, Trade and

other payablea exclude amounis provided for annual leave, which is outside the scope of AASB 8.
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CONSTRUCTION, FORESTRY AND MARITIME EMPLOYEES UNION
CONSTRUCTION & GENERAL DIVISION ~ NATIONAL OFFICE

NOTES TD THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024
NOTE 14 DISCLOSURE OF OFFICERS' REMUNERATION AND NON-CASH BENEFITS

Pursuant to Rule 24B of the Union's Rules and &. 293BC(3) of the Falr Work (Regislered Crganization)
Amendment Act 2018, the Divisional Executive make the following disclosures of Officer ramuneration
and non-cash bensfits recelved for the 2024 financial year.

(2) the five highest paid cofficers of the Union for the financlal year, and thelr remuneration, were as

follows:
Dave Andrew Jason Tolal
Noonazn  Sutherland Jennings
Former Divislonal Divisional
Divisional Assistant Assistant
Secretary Secratary  Secretary
$ § 5 $
Salary and aliowance 258,081 200,081 181,207 861,279
Movemaent in annual and (203,188) 31,357 24,780  (237,091)
long service leave provisions
Superannuation 467 25,503 24 748 &0,718 :
Redundancy 115 5,980 5.980 12,078 :
Other employee benefits 31,915 25,961 24,880 82,726 :

(720) 288,882 271,545 660,707

The non-cash benefit providad to the officers of the Linion are motor vehicles which are owned by the
Unlon. The motor vehicles are primarily used for work related purposes. The valug of thasa benefits are
included in ‘other employee benefits' in the above table.

There wera only thrae pald cfficers during the financial year.

No remuneration or non-cash benefits had beeh received by QOfficers of the Union from a board positlon
attainad becauge of their posltion with the Union,

Zachary Alan Smith is the current Divisional Secratary of CFMEU C&G National Office and the
Divisional Branch Secretary of the CFMEU Construction & General Division Australian Capital
Territory Brench (CFMEU C&G ACT). The remuneraticn for Zach Smith is managed and recorded by
the CEMELW C&G ACT branch. The CFMEL C&G National Offilce compensates the CFMEL CAG ACT
branch through monthly Administration charges for Zach Smith's sarvices to the CFMEU C&G
Netional Office. The Adminlstration charge to CFMEU C8&G ACT Branch for Zach Smith's services
was $376,650 for the year ended 31 March 2024 (2023: Nil). This charge is not included in the above
table.

In accordance with Rule 24D and s. 293G of the Fair Work (Registared Organisations) Amendment Act
2018, refer ta Note § for payments made by the Union to related parties.

The Union has made no repontable payments to any relatad party or declared person or body of the
Union In the year ended 31 March 2024,
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CONSTRUCTION, FORESTRY AND MARITIME EMPLOYEES UNION
CONSTRUCTION & GENERAL DIVISION — NATIONAL OFFICE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024
NOTE 16 ADMINISTRATION OF FINANCIAL AFFAIRS BY A THIRD PARTY

Thare has been no administration of financial affairs by a third party.
NOTE 16 SECTION 272 FAIR WORK (REGISTERED ORGANISATIONS) ACT 2009

In accordance with the requiremants of the Fair Work {Registered Organisations) Act 2009, the ettention
of members ls drawn to the provisions of subsectione (1) fo (3) of section 272, which reads as follows:

Information to be provided to members or General Manager:

(1} A membar of a reporting unit, or the General Manager, may apply to the reperting unlt for
specified prescribed Information In relation to the reporting unit to be made availatle to the
person making the application.

{2) The application must be in writihg and must specify the period within which, and the manner in
which, the Infermation is to be made avallable. The period must not be less than 14 days after
the application Is given to the reporting unit.

(3) A reporting unit must comply with en application made under subsection (1).

NOTE 17 UNION DETAILS
The registerad office of the Unlon Is:

Leval 1, 1 Miller Lane
Pyrmont NSW 2008

NOTE18 SEGMENT INFORMATION
The Union operates solely in one reporling segment, being the provislon of industrial services.
NOTE18 OFFICER DECLARATION STATEMENT

An officer declaration statement has not been prepared given that all relevant disclosures required
under this declaration, have been Incorporated into this financlal report, including *NiL' disclosures.
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Independent Audit Report to the Members of Construction, Forestry and Maritime Employees Union Construction &
General Division — National Office

Report on the Audit of the Financial Report
Opinion

We have audited the financial report of the Construction, Forestry and Maritime Employees Union Construction &
General Division — National Office (“the Union”), which comprises the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2024,
the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year
ended 31 March 2024, notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, the
committee of management statement and the subsection 255(2A) report.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial report presents fairly, in all material aspects, the financial position of the
Construction, Forestry and Maritime Employees Union Construction & General Division — National Office as at 31 March
2024, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year ended on that date in accordance with:

(i) the Australian Accounting Standards; and
(i) any other requirements imposed by the reporting guidelines or Part 3 of Chapter 8 of the Fair Work (Registered

Organisations) Act 2009 (“the RO Act”).

We declare that management’s use of the going concern basis in the preparation of the financial statements of the Union
is appropriate.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of our report. We are
independent of the Union in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical
Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) that are relevant to our audit of the
financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Information Other than the Financial Report and Auditors Report Thereon

The committee of management is responsible for the other information. The other information obtained at the date of
this auditor's report is in the operating report accompanying the financial report.

Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial report or our knowledge obtained in

the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Committee of Management for the Financial Report

The committee of management of the Union is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and
fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the RO Act, and for such internal control as the
committee of management determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and

fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, the committee of management is responsible for assessing the Union’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the committee of management either intend to liquidate the Union or to cease operations, or have

no realistic alternative but to do so.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Australian
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing standards, we exercise professional judgement and

maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate In the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Union’s
internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the committee of management.
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» Condude on the appropriateness of the committee of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists refated to events or conditions that
may cast slgnificant doubt on the Union’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are regulred to draw attention In our auditor’s report to the related disclosures In the financial
report or, if such disclosures are inadeguate, to modify our opinion, Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Unlon to cease to

continue as a golng concern,
+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financlal report, including the disclosures, and whether

the financial report represants the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achleves falr presentation,

We communicate with the committee of management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we Identify during cur

audgit,

I declare that | am an auditor registered under the RO Act.

udit

stephen Migate
Partner

Wollengong
20June 2024

Registration number (as registered under the RO Act): AA 2017/127

Liabllity fimited by a schema approved under Professlonal Standards Leglslation.
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CONSTRUCTION, FORESTRY AND MARITIME EMPLOYEES UNION
CONSTRUCTION & GENERAL DIVISION — NATIONAL OFFICE

DESIGNATED OFFICERS CERTIFICATE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

|, Zachary Smith, being the Divisional Secretary of the Construction, Forestry and Maritime Employees
Union Construction & General Division — National Office certify:

s that the documents lodged herewith are copies of the full report for the Construction, Forestry and
Maritime Employees Union Construction & General Division — National Office for the period
ended 31 March 2024 referred to in 5.268 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009,
and

e that the full report was provided to members of the reporting unit on 27 June 2024; and

o that the full report was presented to a mesting of the Commitiee of Management of the reporting
unit on 12 July 2024 in accordance with 5.266 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act
2009,

Zachary Smith

Divisional Secretary

12 July 2024
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